IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF UPSHUR COUNTY, WEST VIRGINIA

JERRY N. BLACK, M.D,,
Plaintiff,
v. | _ | Civil Action No. 15-C-15
ST. JOSEPH'S HOSPITAL OF
BUCKHANNON, INC,,
Defendant,

ANSWER AND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES OF DEFENDANT ST. JOSEPH'S
HOSFPITAL OF BUCKHANNON, INC. TO PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT AND
COUNTERCLAIMS AGAINST JERRY N. BLACK, M.D.

Defendant, St. Joseph's Hospital of Buckhannon, Inc, ("STJ" or "Defendant"), by and
through counsel, Robert M. Sellards, Nathan I. Brown, Sarah B. Massey and the law firm of
Nelson Mullins Riley & Scarborough LLP, hereby respectfully submits its Answer and
Affirmative Defenses to Plaintiff's Complaint.
| FIRST DEFENSE

Plaintiff's Complaint fails to state a claim upon which relief may be granted and should
be dismissed pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6) of the West Viréinia Rules of Ciyil Procedure.

SECOND DEFENSE

In answering the numbered paragraphs contained i Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant
respectfully states as follows: |

L. Answering Paragraph | of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant is without knowledge
or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations contained
therein, and said allegations stand denied by operation of law.

2. Answering Paragraph 2 of rPlaintiff‘s Complaint, Defendant is without. knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations contained




therein, and said allegations stand deﬁied by operation of law.

3. Answering Paragraph 3 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant admits the allegations
contained therein,

4, Answering Paragraph 4 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant admits that the
property, which is discussed in the documents governing the relationship between the parties in
this matter, is located in Upshur County, West Virginia. All remaining allegations are denied.

5. Answering Paragraph 5 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant is without knowledge
or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations contained
therein, and said allegations stand denied by operation of law.

6. Answering Paragraph 6 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant states that the
Memorandum Agreement dated June 3, 1982 ("Memorandum Agreement"), attached hereto as
Exhibit A, speaks for itself, and therefore, no response is required. To the extent the allegations
set forth in Paragraph 6 contain allegations which are inconsistent ;arith the Memorandum
Agreement, these allegations are denied.

7. Answering Paragraph 7 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant states that there are no
allegations set fosth in this paragraph, and accordingly, no response is required.

8; Answering Paragraph 8 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant states that the Deed
dated June 3, 1982 ("Deed™), attached hereto as Exhibit B, speaks for itself, and therefore, no
response is required. To the extent the allegations contained in Paragraph 8 set forth allegations
which are inconsistent with the Deed, these allegations are denied.

9. Answering Paragraph 9 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant states that the Deed
speaks for itself, and therefore, no response is required. To the extent the ﬂlegﬁions contained

in Paragraph 9 set forth allegations which are inconsistent with the Deed, these allegations are




denied.

10.  Answering Paragraph 10 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant admits that the Deed
and the Memorandum Agi'eement were drafted and prepared by Terry D. Reed, Post Office Box
310, 23 West Main Street, Buckhannon, WV. 26201. Defendant further admits that Terry D.
Reed notarized the Deed and Memorandum Agreement. As to the remaining allegations of
Paragraph 10 of Plaintiff's Complaint, De_fendant is without knowledge or information sufficient
to form a belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations contained therein, and said allegatiéns
stand denied by operation of law.

11.  Answering Paragraph 11 of Plaintitf's Complaint, Defendant states that because of
the vagueness of the words used, in particular "sophisticated,” "auspices," and "competent,"
Defendant is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truthfulness
of the allegations contained therein, and said allegations stand denied by 6peration of law.

12. Answering Paragraph 12 of Plaintiffs Complaint, 7-]‘)efen-dant is without
knowledge or informatioﬂ sufficient to form a belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations
contained therein, and said allegatioﬁs stand denied by operation of law.

13.  Answering Paragraph 13 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant denies that Dr. Black
or STJ believed a "right of first refusal” was intended or created but admits that an option to
repurchase existed. The remaining allegations are denied.

14.  Answering Paragraph 14 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant denies the
allegations contained therein.

15.  Answering Paragraph 15 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant admits the
allegations contained therein. By way of further response, Defendant states that the Complaint

for Declaratory Judgment in the Circuit Court of Upshur County, West Virginia, Civil Action



No. 12-C-52 ("Complaint for Declaratory Judgment™) speaks for itself. To the extent the
allegations contained in Paragraph 15 contain allegations' which are inconsistent with the
Complaint for Declaratory Judgment, these allegations are denied.

16.  Answering Paragraph 16 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant states that the
Complaint for Declaratory Judgment speaks for itself, and therefore, no response is required. To
the extent the allegations contained in Paragraph 16 contain allegations which are inconsistent
with the Complaint for Declaratory Judgment, these.allc gations are denied.

17.  Answering Paragraph 17 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant states that the Option
to Repurchase, attached hereto as Exhibit C, speaks for itself, and therefore, no response is
required. To the extent the allegations contained in Paragraph 17 set forth allegations wﬁich are
inconsistent with the Option to Repurchase, these allegations are denied.

18.  Answering Paragraph 18 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant admits the
allegations contained therein. "

19. Answering' Paragraph 19 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant admits the
atlegations contained therein.

20.  Answering Paragraph 20 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant admits that its
counsel drafted the Order Denying Defendant Jerry N. Black's Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's
Complaint ("Motion to Dismiss Order"), and that the Court entered the Order on October 9,
2012. Defendant further states that Dr. Jerry Black did not object to the Motion to Dismiss
Order. Moreover, Defendant states that the Motion to Dismiss Order speaks for itself. To the
extent the allegations contained in Paragraph 20 contain allegations which are inconsistent with

the Motion to Dismiss Order, these allegations are denied. Further, to the extent Plaintiff alleges



any wrongdoing against Defendant and/or Defendant's counsel, Defendant denies the Plaintiff's
allegations, |

2.1. Answering Paragraph 21 of Plaintiff’s Comi)lajnt, Defendant incorporates by.
reference the transcriﬁt of the October 1, 2012 hearing. A true and correct copy of the transcript
of the Octdber 1, 2012 hearing is attached hereto as Exhibit D. To the extent the allegations
contained in Paragraph 21 contain allegations which are inconsistent with the October 1, 2012
hearing transcript, these allegations are denied. By way of further response, Defendant admits
that during this hearing was the first time that Dr, Black, through counsel, conceded that the
Option to Repurchase was an option contract.

22. - Answering Paragraph 22 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant incorporates by
reference the transcript of the October 1, 2012 hearing. See Exhibit Ib. To the extent the
allegations contained in Paragraph 22 contain allegations which are inconsistent with fhé October
1, 2012 hearing transcript, these allegaﬁons are denied. Defendant furthéf states that the Motion
to Dismiss Order speaks for itself. To the extent the allegations contained in Paragraph 22
~ contain allegations which are inconsistent with the Motion to Dismiss Order, these allegations
are denied. - |

23, Answering Paragraph 23 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant is without
knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations
contained therein, and said allegations stand denied by operation of law. Without admitting any
of the letter's content, Defendant further states that Dean Fisher's letter speaks for itself. To the
extent the allegations contained in Paragraph 23 set forth allegations which are inconsistent with
Dean Fisher's ‘letter, these allegations are denied.

24.  Answering Paragraph 24 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defendant states that the
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allegations set forth therein are legal conclusions, to which no response is required. To the extent

a response is required, the allegations are denied.

25, Answering Paragraph 25 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defendant admits the
allegations contamcd therein.

26,  Answering Paragraph 26 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defendant admits the
allegations contained therein.

27. " Answering Paragraph 27 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant admits that Judge
Henning ruled that the contract in question is an option contract. Defendant further incorporates
by reference the transcript of the June 21, 2013 hearing. A true and correct copy of the transcript
of the June 21, 2013 hearing is attached hereto as Exhibit E. To the extent the allegations
contained in Paragraph 27 set forth allegations which are inconsistent with the June 21, 2013
hearing transcript, these allegations are denied. Defendant denies any remalmng allegations.

28. . Answering Paragraph 28 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant states that the Order
entered on August 8, 2013, ("August '8, 2013 Order") speaks for itself. To the extent the
allegations contained in Paragraph 28 set forth allegations which are inconsistent with the
August 8, 2013 Order, these allegations are denied.

29.  Answering Paragraph 29 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defendant admits the
allegations contained therein.

30.  Answering Paragraph 30 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defendant denies the
allegations contained therein.

31.  Answering Paragraph 31 of PIaintiff‘g Complaint, Defendant states that the
August 8, 2013 Order speaks for itself. To the extent the allegations contained in Paragraph 31

contain allegations which are inconsistent with the August 8, 2013 Order, these allegations are




denied.

32, Answering Paragraph 32 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defendant admits the
allegations contained therein.

33. - Answering Paragraph 33 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant admits that during
oral argument before the Supreme Court of Appeals of West Virginia, Defendant took the
position that the narrow issue before the trial court was only whether the "Option to Repurchase”
was an option contract or a right of first refusal. Defendant further admits that the Supreme
Court of Appeals of West Virginia ordered that the word "valid" be removed from the entered
Order but affirmed the trial cour;'s decision that the "Option to Repurchase” was an option
contract. Defendant ‘denies the remaining allegations.

34.  Answering Paragraph 34 of Plaintiff's Complﬂnt, Defendant states that the
Supreme Court of West Virginia's Opinion filed on September 30, 2014 ("Opinion") speaks for
itself. To the extent the aliegations contained in Paragraph 34 set forth allegations which are
incoﬁsistent with the Opinion, these allegations are denied.

35.  Answering Paragraph 35 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant admits that Dr. Jerry
Black filed a Motion on November 21, 2014 ("Motion”). Without admitting any of its
allegations or conclusions, Defendant further states that the Motion speaks for itself. To the
extent the allegations contained in Paragraph 35 set forth allegations which are inconsistent with
the Motion, these allegations are denied.

36.  Answering Paragraph 36 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defendant admits the
allegations contained therein.

37.  Answering Paragraph 37 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defendant admits the

allegations contained therein.




38.  Answering Paragraph 38 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant admits that it
requested oral argument on Plaintiff's November 21, 2014 Motion. Defendant further admits that
the Court did not hear oral argument on Plaintiff's November 21, 2014 Motion during the
December 1, 2014 hearing. Any remaining allegations are denied.

39.  Answering Paragraph 39 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defendant admits that it
requested oral argument on Plaintiff's November 21,2014 Motion. Defendant further admits that
the Court did not hear oral argument on Plaintiffs November 21, 2014 Motion during the
December 1, 2014 hearing. Any remdining allegations are denied.

40.  Answering Paragraph 40 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defendant admits the
allegations contained therein.

41.  Answering Pai'agraph 41 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Défendant. is without
knowledge or informatioﬁ sufficient to form a belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations
-contained therein, and said allegations stand denied by operation of law.

42,  Answering Paragraph 42 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant, without admitting
any of the contents of Dr. Black's "Objection to Proposed Order and Renewed Motion," states
that such document speaks for itself, and no response is required. To the extent a response is
required, Defendant denies the allegations contained therein.

43.  Answering Paragraph 43 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defeﬁdant is without
knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations
contained therein, and said allegations stand denied by operation of law.

44.  Answering Paragraph 44 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant admits that the Court
entered an Order dated January 13, 2015 ("January 13, 2015 Order”). Defendant further states

that the January 13, 2015 Order speaks for itself. To the extent the allegations contained in




Paragraph 44 set forth allegations which are inconsistent with the January 13, 2015 Order, these
gllegations are denied. As to the remaining allegations of Paragraph 44 of Plaintiff's Complaint,
Defendant states that the allegations contained thereiﬁ are legal conclusions to which no response
is necessary. To the extent a response is required, Defendant is without 'knowledgé‘ or
information sufficient to form a belief as to the truthfulness of the allegations contained therein,
and said allegations stand denied by o.peration of law,

45.  Answering Paragraph 45 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defendant states that the
January 13, 2015 Order speaks for itself. To the extent the allegations contained in Paragraph 45
set forth allegations which are inconsistent with the January 13, 2015 Order, these allegations are
denied.

46.  Answering Paragraph 46 of Plaintiffs Complaint, Defendant states that the
allegations are simply a statement by Plaintiff as to his intentions in filing the Motion of
November 21, 2014, to which no response is required. To the extent Vr;l response is required,
Defendant is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truthfulness
of the allegations contained therein, and said allegations stand denied by operation of law.
Further, to the extent Plaintiff alleges any wrongdoing against Defendant and/or Defendant's
counsel, Defendant denies the Plaintiff's allegations,

47.  Answering Paragraph 47 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant states that the
allegations are simply a statement by Plaintiff as to his intentions i_n not asking for oral argument
on his Motion of November 21, 2014, to which no response is required. To the extent a response
is required, Defendant is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the
truthfulness of the allegations contained therein, and said allegations stand denied by operation

of law.



48.  Answering Paragraph 48 of Plaintiff's Complaint, Defendant states that the
allegations contained ltherein are legal conclusions to which no response is necessary. To the
extent a response is required, Defendant denies the allegations contained therein

49.  Defendant further denies that Plaintiff is entitled to the judgment and relief sought
in the unnumbered paragraphs beginning with "NOW, THEREFORE," set forth after Paragraph
48.

50,  Defendant denies any and all allegations not specifically admitted herein.

THIRD DEFENSE

To the extent supported by the facts and circumstances of this case, Defendant asserts all
defenses relating to the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations and/or statutes of
repose.

FOURTH DEFENSE

Defendant hereby invokes and pleads any and all afﬁrmative'dejé'lenses applicable in the
defense of the claims asserted fn the Plaintiff's Complaint as may be relevant or pertinent and
Justified and established by the facts and circumstances hereof or may be developed through
discovery. Such affirmative defenses are as contemplated andfof set forth in Rules 8 and 12 of
the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure and any and all matters constituting an avoidance or
affirmative defense as contemplated by Rules 8 and 12 of the West Virginia Rules of Civil
Procedure, including, but not limited to, the affirmative defenses of waiver, estoppel, accord and
satisfaction, fraud, contributory negligence, illegality, laches, expiration of the statute of
limitations, or any other matter constituting an avoidance or affirmative defense.

FIFTH DEFENSE

To the extent supported by the facts and circumstances of this case, Defendant preserves

10




all defenses pertaining to jurisdiction, venue, failure to join one or more indispensable parties,

and failure to mitigate damages.

SIXTH DEFENSE

To the extent supported by the facts in this case, Plaintiff cannot recover because thgre
has been a lack of consideration.
SEVENTH DEFENSE
To the extent supported by the facts in this case, Plaintiff cannot recover because there
has been a failure of consideration. |
EIGHTH DEFENSE
To the extent supported by the facts in this case, Plaintiff claims may be barred, in whole
or in part, because Plaintiff failed to perform his contractual obligations and by the doctrine of
unclean hands or in pari delicto.
NINTH DEFENSE
Plaintiff's claims are barred by the doctrines of res judicata, claim precIusion,.collhtcral
estoppel, and issue preclusion, including, but not limited to, the final resolution of such claims
and is';sues.
TENTH DEFENSE
Any actions taken by Defendant in this matter were taken in good faith, in a reasonable
manner, and/or authorized by statutes, and therefore, Plaintiff cannot recover from Defendant.
ELEVENTH DEFENSE
To the extent supported by the facts in this case, Defeﬁdant states that it met all

contractual, statutory, and/or common law obligations it may have owed Plaintiff,
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TWELFTH DEFENSE
To the extent supported by the facts in this case, Plaintiff has waived or is estopped from
asserting the claims in the Complaint.

THIRTEENTH DEFENSE

To the extent supported by the facts in this case, Plaintiff has suffered no legally
cognizable harm, for which he is entitled to compensation.
FOURTEENTH DEFENSE
At all times, and with respect to all matters alleged herein, Defendant acted reasonably,
prudently, in good faith, with good cause, and within the pé;ties‘ reasonable expectations,
FIFTEENTH DEFENSE
Plaintiff's claims are barred or limited by the terms and conditions contained ih the signed
agreements between Plaintiff and Defendant.
SEXTEENTH DEFENSE
Pursuant to W. Va. Code § 36-1A-4(5), the Uniform Rule Against Perpetuities is not
applicable to "[a] nonvested property interest held by a charity, govemment, or governmental
agency or subdivision, if the nonvested property interest is preceded by an interest held by
another charity, government, or governmental agency or subdivision."
| SEVENTEENTH DEFENSE
If the Court determines that the Rule Against Perpetuities applies, the documents should
be reformed pursuant to w. Va. Code § 36-1A-3.
EICHTEENTH DEFENSE
To the extent supported by the facts in this case, Plaintiff's claims are barred, in whole or

in part, because there was no meeting of the minds.
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NINETEENTH DEFENSE

This Defendant reserves the right to assert such claims, whefher they be cross-claims,
coﬁnter~claims, third-party claims, or other claims for indemnification and contribution, as
investigation and discovery may prove applicable, and hereby reserves the right to any such
claim or potential claim.

TWENTIETH DEFENSE

Defendant asserts the American Rule as a complete bar to Plaintiff's claim for attorney
fees and costs.

TWENTY-FIRST DEFENSE

To the extent that the Complaint asserts that Plaintiff is entitled to recover punitive or
exemplary damages, this Defendant asserts the following defenses:

1. Plaintiff's claim for punitive damages violates, and is therefore barred by, the
Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United Stétes
of America on groundé including the following:

| (a) it is a violation of the Due Process and Equal Protection Clauses of the Fourteenth
Amendment of the United States Constitution to impose punitive damages, which
are penal in nature, against a civil defendant upon the Plaintiff satisfying a burden
of proof which is less than the "beyond a reasonable doubt" burden of proof
required in criminal cases; | |

(b)  the procedures pursuant to which punitive damages are awarded may result in tﬁe '

award of joint and several judgments against multiple defendants for different
alleged acts of wrongdoing, which infringes upon the Due Process and Equal

Protection Clauses of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States
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Constitution;

the procedures to which punitive damages are awarded fail to provide a
reasonable limit on the amount of the award against defendant, which thereby
violates the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United
States Constitution;

the procedures pursuant to which punitive damages are awarded fail to provide
specific standards for the amount of the award of punitive damages which thereby
violates the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United
States Constitution;

the procedures pursuant to which punitive damages are awarded result in the
imposition of different penalties for the same or similar acts, and thus violate the
Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of- the United States
Consfitution; |

the procedures pursuant to which punitive damégcs are awarded permit the
imposition of punitive damages in excess of the maximum criminal fine for the
same or similar conduct, which thereby infringes upon the Due Process Clause of
the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments and the Equal Protection Clause of the
Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution;

the procedures pursuant to which punitive damages are awarded permit the
imposition of excessive fines in violation of the Eighth Amendment of the United
States Constitution;

the award of punitive darﬁagcs to the Plaintiff in this action would constitute a

deprivation of property without due process of law; and
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2.

the procedures pursuant to which punitive damages are awarded permit the
imposition of an excessive fine and penalty.

Plaintiff's claim for punitive damages violates and is, therefore, barred by the

provision of the Constitution of the State of West Virginia, including, but not limited to, Article

I1I, Sections 4, 5, 6 and 10, on grounds including the following:

()

(b

(©
(d)
(€)

®

(8)

it is a violation of thé Due Process and Equai Protection Clauses to impose
punitive damages, which are penal in nature, against a civil defendant upon the
Plaintiff satisfying a burden of proof which is less than the "beyond a reasonable
doubt” burden of proof required in ﬁﬁminal cases;

the procedures pursuant to which punitive damages are awarded may result in the
award of joint and several judgments against multiple defendants for different
alleged acts of wrongdoing;

the procedures to which punitive damages are awarded faii to provide a limit on
the amount of the award against defendant;

the procedures pursuant to which punitive damages are awarded fail to‘ provide
specific standards for the amount of the award of punitive damages;

the procedures pursuant to which punitive damages are awarded result in the
imposition of different penalties for the same or similar acts;

the procedures pursuant to which punitive damages are awarded permit the
imposition of punitive damages in excess of the maximum criminal fine for the
same or similar conduct;

the procedures pursuant to which pu;litive damages are awarded permit the

imposition of excessive fines;
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(h)  the award of punitive damages to the Plaintiff in this action would constitute a

| deprivation of property without due process of law; and |

(i) the procedures pursuant to which punitive damages are awarded permit the

imposition of an excessive fine and penalty,
TWENTY-SECOND DEFENSE

Defendant reserves the right to assert additional affirmative defenses as discovery
progresses.

WHEREFORE, Defendant St. Joseph's Hospital of Buckhannon, Inc. respéctfully
demands that the Plaintiff's Complaint in this action be diémissed with prejudice, that jﬁdgment
be entered on behalf of Defendant St. Joseph's Hospital of Buckhannon, Inc., that Defendant St.
Joseph's Hospital of Buckhannon, Inc. be awarded the reasonable costs and attorney fees
necessarily incurred in the defense of this action, and that Defendant St. Joseph's Hospital of

Buckhannon, Inc. be granted such other relief as may seem appropriate.

COUNTERCLAIMS AGAINST PLAINTIFF JERRY N. BLACK, M.D.

' Defendant, St. Joseph's Hospital of Buckhannon, Inc. ("STI" or "Defendant™), by and
through its undersigned counsel, pursuant to W. Va, R. Civ. P. 13, hereby states the following
Counterclaims against Plaintiff, Jerry N. Black, M.D:

BRIEF STATEMENT OF FACTS
1. STJ is a West Virginia non-profit corporation with its principal place of business
located at 1 Amalia Drive, Buckhannon, West Virginia 26201.
2. Upon information and belief, Jerry N. Black, M.D. ("Dr. Black"), is a resident of
Upshur Cdunty, West Virginia, with a business address of 10 Amalia Drive, Buckhannon, West

Virginia 26201.
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3. On June 3, 1982, STJ and Dr. Black entered into a "Memorandum Apreement."
See Exhibit A,

4, Pursuant to the Memorandum Agreement, STJ transferred real Iiroperty to Dr,
Black by Deed dated June 3, 1982 and recorded at Book 306 Page 144. See FExhibit B. The
- deeded property is located in Upshur County, West Virginia.

5. In exchange. for the transfer of land, as more fully set forth in the attached
documentation, Dr. Black granted to STJ an "thion to Repurchase." See Exhibit C.

6. Subsequently, Dr. Black had formally taken the ﬁosition that STJ did not possess
an option contract but rather a right of first refusal. In fact, Dr. Black informed STJ that a buyer
had made an offer to purchase the property and offered STJ the right of first refusal. However,
despite requesting information about the purported offer, STJ never received verification that an
offer to purchase was actually made.

7. A right of first refusal is significantly different from an opﬁon contract. A right of
first refusal does not ripen into an executed contract until the condition precedent, the existence
of an offer by a bona fide purchaser, is met. Alternatively, an option contract can be exercised
by the optionee w1thm the agreed-upon time fréme, and rcgé:dless of the existence of an offer by
a bona fide purchaser.

8. Dr. Black attempted to modify the rights of STJ under its option contract by
inferring a condition precedent that does not exist and was not bargained for. Moreover, such an
arrangement was never contemplated by the parties.

9. Therefo_re, based on Dr. Black's position that the "Option to Repurchase" created a

"right of first refusal,” STJ brought a preyibus action pursuant to the West Virginia Uniform
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Declaratory Judgment Act, W. Va. Code § 55-13-1, et seq. and W. Va. R. Civ, P. 57 ﬁgainst Dr.
Black in the Circuit Court of Upshur County, West Virginia, Civil Action No. 12-C-52,

10.  Inthe previous action, STJ sought the declaration that STJ possessed an option to
repurchase rather than a right of first refusal.

i1, By Order dated, August 8, 2013, the Court declared that STJ did possess an
option contract rather than a right of first refusal and granted summary judgment, after Dr. Black
and his counsel suddenly no longer disputed that the "Option to Repurchase” created an option
contract. |

12.  However, Dr. Black objected to the order granting summary judgment because it
stated that the "Option to Repurchase" wa.é valid, and subsequently, he appealed to the Supreme
Court of Appeals of West Virginia, which ultimately affirmed the trial court's decision that the
Option to Repurchase created an option contract, as opposed to a right of first refusal, but agreed
that the word "valid" should be removed. After the Supreme Court of Ap;aeals of West Virginia
issued its opinion, Dr. Black's counsel filed ethics complaints with the West Virginia State Bar
against STJ's trial and apﬁellate counsel, and these complaints remain pending.

13, On January 13, 2015, after a remand hearing, this Court entered an order granting
STJ summary judgment and finding the "Option to Repurchase” to be an option contractb.

14, On February 5, 2015, Plaintiff filed an appeal of this Court's January 13, 2015
Order to the Supreme Court of Appeals of West - Virginia, which remains pending.

15.  On February 10, 2015, Plaintiff initiated. this lawsuit against STJ by filing the
present Complaint.. |

COUNT ONE
(Breach of Contract Against Plaintiff)

16.  STJincorporates Paragraphs 1-15 by reference as if fully set forth herein.
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17. Under the terms of the Deed, STJ conveyed to Plaintiff "all of that certain tract,
lot or parcel of land situate in the City of Buckhannon, Buckhannon District, Upshur County, .
West Virginia, and being more particularly described" in the Deed. See Exhibit B.

18.  This conveyance was made "subject to all terms and provisions contained and set
forth in [the Memorandum Agreement] dated 3 day of June 1982" by and betWeen STJ and Dr.
Black. See Exhibits A and B, |

19.  Further, this conveyance was made "subject to [the Option to Repurchase]" by
and between STJ and Dr. Black. See Exhibits B and C.

20.  Pursuant to the Option to Repurchase, Plaintiff granfed STJ an option to purchase
the conveyed property.

21.  Plaintiff has failed and refused to acknowledge that he has obligations under the
Option to Repurchase and STJ has rights granted to-it under the Option to Repurchase, including
initially asserting that STJ had only a right of first refusal and not an oﬁtion contract and now
tlﬁough the current litigation asserting that STJ can never assert its rights under the Option to
Repurchase.

22, As articulated herein, Plaintiff's conduct constitutes a violation of his duty to act
in good faith and with fair dealing. Accordingly, his conduct amounts to a material breach of the
Deed and Option to Repurchase.

23.  Pursuant to the Memorandum Agreement and related documents, STJ may
immediately exercise the Option to Repurchase.

24.  Moreover, Plaintiff's breach of the Deed and Option to Repurchase contract have

’directly and proximately caused damage to ST,

25.  Plaintiffis liable for damages that he has directly and proximately caused to STJ.
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WHEREFORE, STJ is entitled to judgment against the Plaintiff, including, the recovery
of its damages relate:d to Plaintiff's conduct and the ability to immediately exercise its rights
under the Option to Repurchase, and any other such relief as this Coq:rt may deem just and
proper.

COUNT TWO
(Unjust Enrichment Against Plaintiff)

26.  STlincorporates Paragraphs 1-25 by reference as if fully set forth herein,

27.  Plaintiff has received benefits under the terms of the executed Deed and
Memorandum Agreement, including, but not limited to, the continuing use of the property
conveyed in the Deed pursuant to the terms of the Memorandum Agreement and the Option to
Repurchasé. See Exhibits A and B.

28.  Should the Court find that the Rule against Perpetuities apﬁlies and invalidates the
Option to Repurchase, Plaintiff will have been unjustly enriched by having the use of tﬁe
property at issue and receiving the property free from STI's interest without having paid fair and
reasonable consideration. Alternatively, regardless of this Court's ruling on the relief sought in
Plaintiff's Complaint, Dr. Black has enjoyed the use of the property without having paid fair and
reasonable consideration,

29.  Asadirect and proximate result of Plaintiff's wrongful refusal to compensate STJ
for the benefit he has received and continues to receive under the Deed and Memorandum
Agreement, STJ has been, and continues to be, harmed, and Dr. Black has been unju;“tly
enriched. |

30.  Plaintiff is liable for damages that he has directly and proximately caused to STJ

and for the benefits that he has unjustly received.

WHEREFORE, STI is entitled to judgment against the Plaintiff, including compensation
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for Dr. Black's use and enjoyment of the property now and potentially in the future, and any
other such relief as this Court may deem just and proper.

COUNT THREE
(Trespass Against Plaintiff)

31..  STJincorporates Paragraphs 1-30 by reference as if fully set forth herein.

32. The conduct of Plaintiff, including the actions described herein, constitute
unlawful interference with STJ's rights to possession of the real property conveyed in the Deed.

33, As a direct and proximate result of Plaintiff's wrongful conduct, STJ has been

harmed. |

34.  Plaintiff is liable for damages that he has directly and proximately caused to STJ.

WHEREFORE, STJ is entitled to judgment against the Plaintiff, including, the ability to
immediately exercise its rights under the Option to Repurchase, actual damages, including
' attorney fees and costs, and any other such relief as this Court may deem just and proper.

THIS DEFENDANT DEMANDS A TRIAL BY JURY.

ST. JOSEPH'S HOSPITAL OF
BUCKHANNON, INC,

By:

Of Counsel

Robert M. Sellards, Esquire (WVSB #9104)
Nathan I. Brown, Esquire (WVSB #11900)
Sarah B. Massey, Esquire (WVSB #12022)
Nelson Mullins Riley & Scarborough LLP
P.O. Box 1856

Huntington, WV 25719-1856

Main Office Phone: (304) 526-3500

Direct Dial Phone: (304) 526-3506

Fax: (304) 526-3556
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF UPSHUR COUNTY, WEST VIRGINIA

JERRY N, BLACK, M.D.,
Plaintiff,
v. Civil Action No. 15-C-15
Hon. Jacob E. Reger

ST. JOSEPH’S HOSPITAL OF
BUCKHANNON, INC.,

Defendant.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned attomey hereby certifies that the foregoing “Answer and Affirmative Defenses
of Defendant St. Joseph’s Hospital of Buckhannan,' Inc. to Plaintiff’'s Complaint and
Counterclaims Against Jerry N. Black, M.D.” was served upon the following individuals by
mailing true copies thereof by regular manner in the United Stc;ttes mail, postage prepaid, at
Huntington, West Virginia, on the 13"‘ day of March, 2015 to:

J. Burton Hunter, 111, Esq.

J. Burton Hunter, 111 and Associates, PLLC

One West Main Street
Buckhannon, WV 26201 -
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MEMORANDUM AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN
JERRY N. BLACK AND 5T, JOSEPH'S HOSPITAL

This Agreement made and entered into this 3rd day of June,
1382, by and between Jerry N. Black (physlgian),,hereinafter
raferred to as Phyaician and Slisters of the Pallottine
Missionary soclety, a corporation, dba St. Joseph's Hospital,
hereinafter referred to as Hospital.

Whereas, fHospltal owns and operates a hompital located at
hmalia Drive, Buckhaﬁnon, Upshur County, West Virginla, and

Whereas, Physician will construct a one story medical
ofFice bullding, on 13,069 square feet ofland west of and

adjacent to St. Joseph's as more fully appeara from the Deed

'between Physician as Owner and Hospital, a copy of which is

attached hereto and made a part hereof, and,

Whereas, Hosplital has agreed to provide parking adjacent to
the aforesaid Physicién 0ffice Bullding at no cost to Fhysician
and to increase the parking capacity for patients, visitors,
employees, and gtaff of St. Joseph's Hospital and for the use of
the physicians, patients, visitors and employees of the
Physiclan Office Bullding, and,

Whereas, Physlcian has agreed to maintain the exterior and
coﬁmon areas of the interior of the Physician Office Building in
first class condition and repair and to otherwise carry out the
agreementa.

Now, therefore, witnesseth: That for and in conaideration

of the foregoing which are not to be construed as mere recitals
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but ap an lntegral part hereof, and other good and valuable
considarations, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowladged and the mutual covenants hereinafter contained, ths
parties do agree as followax

1. Physician will_construct at his own cost a Physicians
Office Bullding in accordance with the construction cantract
aforesald of said Phyaiciana Qffice Building which ghall be
commenced on or before September 1, 1982, and completed no later
than May 231, 1983,

2, Hospital will promptly commencé and diligently
prosecute the construction at its own cost of extending the
water and sewer lines to Phyﬁician's'property line 'and extend
the parking lot in order that it will; in total, accommodate
approximately 160 automobiles on sald lot and shall be made
available to the physiclans, patients, visitors and employees in
the Physicians_office Buildinélas thay are made available to the
physicians, patlients, visitors, employeea and ataff of St.
Joseph's Hospital.

3. Physician agrees that Hospital will be furnished with
coplas of all plang, specifications and contract documents |

pertaining to any remodeling oxr other changes to the exteriar of

. the Physician's Qffica Bullding for its advance approval which

shall not be unreasonably withheld,
4. Physician agrees that the Unit within the building will
be used and occupied only by members of the medical, surgical

and aoral surgical staff at St. Jogeph’a Hospital hereinafter
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referred to as Physician. In addition, only those act;vities
?easonably related to the practicg of the Physician shall be
permitted in the Unit provided and further, only if such
activitiaes are performeé in conjunction with or are gsupportive
of the practice of the Doctors. If a aupported doctor is unable
tc continue his practice, his related supportive personnel may
continue to practice in the building for two years. Every
effort will be made té recruit a new supported doctor for the
buildlng by mutual agreement with the hospital. 1In the event
any of the Doctors shall lose their ataff privilegea for any
reason at said Hospital and make an honest and sincere effort to
regain said staff privilege, such Physician shall be permitted
to retain his usage of the Unit. Any failure to.comply with
this provision ahall be enforceable in 'a court of law by
Physician, any Unit Owner or Hoapital.

5. Physician agrees to maintain the common areas and all
other properties belonging to Physician, including the exterior

of the buiding, in first class shape and repair and to abide by

all covenants and agreements which are incorporated by reference

and made a part herecf. In the event the Phyalcian fails to

maintain the common areas and all other properties, including

the exterior of the huilding, in the manner deemed proper by the

Hospital, then and in that event the Hospital shall have the
right to maintain the common areas and such othar properties
belonging tc the Physician and to charge the expeanse related
thereto to the Physiecian, his successors and assignas. The

Physician, his successors and asaigna shall pay such expense

within thirty (30} days after presentment of a bill for the
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total amount theréof. Nothing herein, however, shall impose an

" obligation upon the Hospital to maintain such cormon areas and

office building. ‘

76. It is agreed that the parties hereto ara not engaged in
a joilnt vemture or in any other type of partnership activity,
and that each of the parties heéreto are acting independently of
the other. The Physiclan does hereby agree to save and hold
harmlesa the Hospital from any loas or liabillity arising out of
any act or omiselon which occurs within the property owned by
the Physician.

7. Hospital or its successors is hereby granted the firsat
option to purchase the land for the sum of $1.00 and the
Physiclang Office Building pursuant to the tefms and conditions
shown on the option agreement attached herato as Exhibit A ana
made a part hereof. 1In the evenht the Phyaiciaﬁ, his successors
and assigns, is in default of any provision of thia agreement,
the Hospital shall have the right to declare a breach of this
agreement and givs notice therecf, in writing, to the Physician,
his successor or assign. In tha event such breach ias not cured
within thirty (30) daye after the date such notice was glven,
then and in that event, the Hoapital may, at ita option, ageek
such injunctive relief or other remedies it deems appropriate in
any Court of competent jurisdiction or it may terminate thie
agreement and exercise immed;gtely the option to répurchasa i
which ie set forth as Exhibit A, attached herato and made a part

hereaf.
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8. Physician agreed that the covenants containad herein
shall ke binding upon his helrs, successors, and assigns,
including but not limited to Physicians office Bullding,

9. Purchasers and/or unit owners need not be restricted to

; members of the medical, surgical and oral surgical staff at Sk,

Joseph'as Hospital. Although ownership nead not be restricted to
members of the medical, surgical or oral surgical staff at St.
Joseph's Hoapital, the use of auch facilities shall be
controlled by Section 4 of this Agreement.

In witness whersof, the parties have hereunts caused their
corporate names to be signed the day and year first hereinafter

written,

ol 2 4}’ ;:27 {::;;flf"’

Jﬂgfjgzarrtj?’ Black {Pnysiciany

Sistera of the PFallottine Missionary
Society, a corporation, dba St.
Joaseph's Hospital

i
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STATE OF WEST VIRAINIA,

COUNTY QF UPSHUR, TQ-WIT:

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me thia
JS‘G day of June, 1982, by Jarry . Black {Physician).
i My commiseion expires A, 7. /¢Fé
I 7

: Wotary<Publiec in and for Upshur

5
%unty . Waat Virginia

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA,
COUNTY QF UPSHUR, TO-WIT:
The foregoing instrument was acknowledaed before me, thia

aud
N 37 day of June, 19B2, on behalf of Slaters of the Pallottinas

Missionary Society, a corporation, by S\*r A Dissg Busher 556

its l"r-..h'u.'.l gu’f.n'un

My commiasion expires O3, ¥ /¥4 . )

- No;—;%y Public In and for Upshur
County, West Virginia

i fﬂ: S sPiamelt— was
Preraradl b)/ 7;;—»); y) )'?ﬂ!ﬂt/
‘ -Gf)"arw'%/ A7 L/




Exhibit B



[T, Cr e et e e aea s e e > —_
ST e .

pook - JO6 e 144 .

This deed, made this 9248 day of Soidic; 1982, by and

:between the Sisters of the Pallottine Missionary Soclety, a

. gcorporation, party of tha first part, and Jerry N. Black, party
of the second part, witnessath:

- That for and in consideration 6f the sum of Ona Dollar

{$1.00) cash in hand paid and for other good and. valuable
' consideration, the receipt and sufficlency of all of wHich ia

. hereby acknowiedged, the said party of the first part doas hereby-'

',grant and convey unto tha party of'iha second part, with

| covenantg of géneral wérranty,_all of that ceftain“tract, lot eor
parcel of land situate in the City of chkﬁannqn, Buckhannon
%IDlstriCt, Upshur COunty, West virglnia, and being more

i particularly boundsd and described as followss

Begilnning at a point in the blacktop located 74.00 feat

=g

- westerly from the existing hospital building and 29.00 fiaet
southerly from an extension of the northerly line of the existing
hospltal bullding and being located S. 41-15 E. 61.37 feet from a

railroad spike corner of an 8.42 acre tract of the Eisfefa of the

Pallottine Missionary Society (D.B. 111/340) whidh orlginally
called for "a stake in €. L. Barlew’s line"; thence rinning

parallel with the weeterly line of the existing hospital building

8. 37-14 E. 76.00 feet to a point in the blacktep; thence

perpendicularly S. 52-46 W. 87.67 feet to a point in thae
blacktop; thance perpendicularly S. 37-14 E. 3.75 feet to a point:
in the blacktop; thence perpendicularly S. 52-46 W. B80.32 feat.to

a point in the blacktop; thence perpendicularly N. 37-14 W. 79.75

feet to a point in the blacktop:_fhence perpendicularly N. 52-46

E. 168.00 feat to the point of beginning, containing 13,069

square feet, more or less, aa surveyed in octobar, 1982, by Smith

Engineering Company, Buckhannon. Wﬂﬁt Virginia. Burl J. Smith,

RPCE #6983 and as shown on a plat attched heretc and mada a part

of this degcription.
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There is ressrved from the 13,069 sgquare foot parxcel tha

. eastern portion of a 40-foot right of way which lias sast of the,

E“N. 37-14 W. 79.75 feet® line and which intersects thé "N. 52-4&

"E. 168,00 feet" line at a point 9.44 feet from the western

endpoint and which intersects the "§. 52-46 W. 80.33 feet" 1inav

f.at a point 0.63 feet from the westg:n‘endpoint. The maxlmum

ioverlap of the 40-foot righ£ of way onto the 13.069’square=foot

Eparcal is 2.44 feet at the north side and 0.63 feet at the south

gide. The 40-foot right of way was originally formed in a
Chancery Order dated November 13, 1913 between Edward Carper,
Plaintiff vs Frank Carper and others, Defendants, which is
recorded in Deed Book 58, at_p;ge 503, in the office of the Clerk
of the County Commission of Upshur County, West Virginia.

The 13,069 square /oot parcel 1ls part of an 8.42 acre parcel

conveyaed by the Right Reverend John J. Swint, Bishop bf Wheeiing.

to tha Sisters of the Pallottine Missicnary Society by deed dated
hpril 26, 1945, and recorded in Deed Bock 111, at page 340, in
the office of the'clgrk of the County Commission of Upshur
Courxy, West Virginia. .

This conveyance is also madé subject to all terms and
provisions contained and set:forth in that certaim memorandum.
agreément dated the 3rd day of June, 1932,‘by and between tﬁe
Sigters of the Pallottine‘missinnary Saclety, a_corporation, dba
5t. Jospeh'’s Hospital, and the sald Jerry N. Black, a copy of
which said memorandum agreement is attached herete and made a

part hereof as if fully set forth herein and is marked for

identification as Exhibit B, Refarence to sald Exhiblt B is made '

for all pertinent purposes, terms and provisions thereof being a

part of the consideration for this deed of conveyance.

.

There is also hereby granted and conveyed unto the party of

the second part, his heirs, personal representative, successors

and assigns, the right to the use, in conjunction with the
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authorized use of the property hereby conveyed, in common with
. others entitled thaeresto, of the parking‘area, common areas and
. Zise;vida roads; together with the appurtenant fight of wa& for
:1ngreas and eqgresa to and from any and all structures and
improvements erscted or to bhe erected upon sgid premises and the |
‘fnecessa;y right of way for the 1nstal}ation, maintenance, repair .
and renewal of all utilities as contemplated by sala Exh;bits A
~and B hereto. .
5 This conveyance 1s further mada}subject to that certain
“Option to Repurchase," heretofore executed by the party of the
secoﬁd part wherein cert?in righta_are granﬁed‘ﬁnto the party of
the first part herein. Said.OPtién to Repurchase is to be
recorded in the office of tha Clerk of the County Commission of
Upshur County, Weat- Virglniaf51multaneously with the recordation
jj of thia deed. Further, a copy of said option is attached hereto |
S and made a part hereof as 1f fully set forth herein, and is |
5 marked for identification as Exhibit A, Reference to said

| Ethibit A ia hereby made for all pertinent purposes.

This covneyance is made gsubject to all rights of way and

! easements, if any, of record in said Clerk's office or which

would bhe disclosed by a visual lnspection of the premiaes. harein

conveyed.,

. DECLARATION OF CONSIDERATION -
: Under the penalties of fine and imprisonment as provided by
i law, the party of thé first pare does hereby declare tha£ thia
ﬁ deed is exenpt From excise tax on the Privilgge of transférring_
} real astate as prdvided-by West Virginia code 11~-22~1, it being )

conveyed from a non-profit charitable corporation.

i Witness the following signatura:

) - —

i SISTERS OF THE PALLOTTINE MISSICMARY
’ S0CIETY, a corporation

h ‘ RBY gi;ﬂ:fﬂ. Aﬂéﬁ&féguééé_SAC.
i ITS: A iaint o
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.sratE oF (g U=, .

COUNTY OF (twehior ; TO~WIT:
4 7

¥ The foregolng instrument waa acknowledged before me this
: 2 Eﬁday of @c.‘faéd/ , 1982, on behalf of Slaters of

!_ the Pallottine Misslonary Soclety, a corporation, by S.57c-
M. Digae /5"?41%'117 SHe [ty Srestent
My commission explres Gred™ & /5 P4 o :
4 :

lic in and for

i : Notary t
] Upshur”County, Weat Virginia l '
1 The foregoing deed was prepared by
: Terry D. Read of the Law Firm of '

. { Hymes and Coonts, Attorneys at lLaw /
i Buckhannon, WV 26201 {11f) ;

s
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EXHIBIT A

OPTION TO REPURCHASE

This option to parchase, granted this 3rd day of June,
1982, by and between Jerry M. Black (Physician) and his
successors and assigna including but not limited to Physiclans
Offica Building, hereinafter referred to as Physician and
Sigtern of the Pallottine Missionary Society, a corporation, dba
St. Joseph's Hospital, hereinafter referred to as Hospital.

1. GRANT OF OPTION: 1In consideration of the sum of Ten
Dollars (%510.00) and other good and valuable considerations,
pald by Hospital to Physician, recelpt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, Physlcian, on behalf of himself and his successors
and asaigns'including but not limlted to Physicians Office
Building does hereby grant to Hospital the first option"to
purchase the premisea known aa Physiclians Office Building and
more particularly described in Exhibit 1 attached hereto and
made a part haereof.

'2. EXPIRATION DATE: Thia option shall expire at noon
on June 3, 2081 unless otherwise extended by the operation of
this agreemsnt or consent of the partiea hereto, their
successors and assigne.

3. ROTICE OF EXERCISE: This option shall be exercised
by written notice signed by St. Joseph's and sant by regiscere.
mail at least one year prior to the expiration date to Physicia:

or his successor and asaigns, including but not iimited to
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Physiclans Office Building at his office located within the
Physicians Office Building. l

4, PURCHASE PRICE: The ﬁurchase price shall he the sum
of One Dollar ($1.00) and the fair market value for the building
excluding the value of the land as determined by three
arbltrators, one chosen by Hospital, one chosen by Physilclan,
and his euccessors and aasigns, including but not fimited to
Fhysicians Office Bullding and the third to be chosen by the two
arbitrators so selected. The purchase price shall be paid in at
least equal seml annual installments over a period of not more
than five years with the interest accruing thereon at annual
percentage rate eaqual to the annual interesg rata for comparable
commerglal properties which 1s charged by the Central National
Bank of Buckhannon, West Virginia, and the Adrian Buckhannon
Bank of Buckhannon, West Virginia, thelr successors and assigns.

5. TIME DURING WHICHE OPTION MAY BE EXERCISED: This
first o?tion will be exercised by glving written notice as set
forth in paragraph 3 herein which notice can only ba given at
any time within one year prior to the date of the expiration of
thia Option, ox within ninety {90} days after a notice of
default is tendered in tha manner and terms required by
provision 7 of the “Memorandum Agreement By and Between
{Physician) and St. Joseph's Hospital®” bearing date of the 3rd

day of June, 1982, and axecuted by the partles hereto.
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Further, during the term of this option, Lf the

Physicians Office Building is destroyed or damaged in excéss of

Cwners will rebuild unless more than 50% elect not to rebulld,
in which case 5t. Joseph's can require Physician and his
successors and aasigns including but not limited to Physicians
Office Building to remove the debrie and éell the real estata
back to 5t. Joseph's for One Dollar ($1.00}.

6. FAILURE TO EXERCISE OPTION: If St. Joseph'é does
not exercise this option by the 3rd day of June, 2081, as
provided above, then the same shall be renewed following such
| date for an additional ninety-nine year period.

7. ASSIGNMENT: This option and all rights hereunder
‘shall he freely assignable by St. Jnseph'é and 1f asaigned, all

. acts required may be performed by such Assignee.

8. BINDING EFFECT: Physician agrees that this option
shall be binding upon his successors and assigns including but
not limited to Physiclans Qffice Bui;ding.

9. Hothing contained herein shall prevent the parties

hereto together with all unit owners from at any time mutually

terma and caonditiona as set forth harein.
In Witness Whereof, tha parties have hareunto set their

hands and seals the day and year flrst above written;

50% of the replacement cost of thae entire building then the Unit

agreaing to sell said Physicians 0ffice Building pursuant to the
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222 D, gl

rry N,-Black (Physician)

S1STERS OF THE PALLOTTINE MISEIONARY
SOCIETY dbe ST. JOSEPH'S HOSPITAL

By,
Its

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA,
COUNTY OF UPSHUR, TO-WIT:
The foragoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

day of June, 1982, by Jerry M. Black {(Physician).

My commission expiras ‘ .

' Notary Public in and for Upshur
County, West Virginia

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA,
COUNTY OF UPSHUR, TO-WIT:
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged pefora me, this

day of Juna, 1982, on behalf of Sistears of the Pallottine

Misslonaxry Society, a corporation, by .

its . . i

My commisslon expiras - .

Motary Public in and tor Upahur
County, Wesat Virginia

3773 STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, County of Upshur, To-Wis:

UPE"._‘!"?"_ o i 1, Ranald J. Pugh, Cletlr of the County Commission of said ¢ d
E S I::::Ir-c:‘rhfy that the l'oregping writing, with certificaie theretu?;“ntz;ed':
L CORGED 5 day produced {o me in my office and daly admitted 10 record,

oy | 4Pl

___,,BK_—-——PG-“'

Witness my hand,

Atgpd

~ Clerk
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aCORY

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF UPSHUR COUNTY, WEST VIRGINIA

ST. JOSEPH'S HOSPITAL
of Buckhannon, Inc.,

Plaintiff
Vs, ' CASE NO. 12-C-52

JERRY N. BLACK, M.D.,
Defendant.

Transcript of the proceedings held in the above noted matter, held in Upshur
County, West Virginia, on October 1, 2012, al approximately 1:23 p.m., before the
Honorable Thomas H. Keadle, Judge of the Twenty-Sixth Judicial Circuit and duly
recorded by Jeannie L.. Hyre, Court Reporter for the Twenty-Sixth Judicial Circuit.

APPEARANCES:

For the Plaintiff:

ROBERT M. SELLARDS
RYAN ASHWORTH
Huntington, WV

For the Defendant:

J. BURTON HUNTER, i
Buckhannon, WV 26201

qi



October 1, 2013
1:23 p.m.

BY THE COURT: This is the case of St. Joseph Hospital of Buckhannon,
Inc., Plaintiff, versus Jerry N. Black = you all can be seated = M.D., 12-C-52.

This matter comes on, according to my docket, on a 12(b)(6) motion.
Presentis J. Budoﬁ Hunter, ti, and you represent Jerry N. Black, M.D., the
Dafendant? _

MR. HUNTER: Yes, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: And he's present,

MR. HUNTER: Yes, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: And gentlemen, your names are?

MR. SELLARD: I'm Rob Sellards, Your Honar,

MR. ASHWORTH: Ryan Ashworth, representing St. Joseph's Hospital of
Buckhannon. |

BY THE COURT: Al right, I'm ready to hear your motion.

MR. HUNTER: Your Honor, Dr. Black, since the early 1980s, has bean an
eye surgeon in Buckhannon. There came to be drafted by attorney Terry Reed,
the attomey for the Hospital, certain documents, inclluding deed, an agreement
and a repurchase option and the item in dispute, the issue in dispute involves the
alleged right to repurchase. There are three, but more tightly focused, two key
. provisions and | think - I'll read them to you, bu_t, Your Honor, I've gotthemon a

poster, | can bring them up and we can post the sentences, if necessary,

T




The first provision sets out when the hoépital can flrst notify Dr. Black if &t
wants to repurchase what he bought, which is a lot upon which he was, by |
agreement, ablé to build his offices and other structures; and have parking areas
and I'm sure the Court will be familiar, it's the suite of offlces over on the right as
you come up the hill, and you turn left and you go into the main parking area.

And that notice can be exercised at any time prior to the one year before
the repurchase agreement runs out, and that repurchase agreement was for 99
years.

BY THE COURT: Letme ask you a question. Just what's this case about?

MR. HUNTER: They want to buy from Dr. Black what he owns, against his
wishes, for a price he does not wish to sell for. He—

BY THE COURT: And that's the building, the whole building over there?

MR. HUNTER: That's another dispute that will not ba dealt with today, Your
Honor. The question is, is it just the real estate or would it be everything Dr. Black
would have to give up, which would Inﬁ:iude his practice and a surgical center that's
there, total value of about five million dollars. '

BY THE COURT: And they ara all on tha same piece of real estate.

MR. HUNTER: Yes, yes.

BY THE COURT: Okay. _

MR. HUNTER: So, there isn't any doubt — oh and by the way, we actually

agree on something. The response on the ~ to my maotion, their first choice is that

99



the agreement Is, “The repu-rchase agreament is unambiguous and may he
pursued according to its terms.”, and we agrea with that.

So, If Dr. Black received a notice a day after he finished building the
buildings and several months after he received his deed, he would then know that
the hospital was going to repurchase, but the key, and it's very unambiguous, is
paragraph five, becausa it sets out, “Time During Which Option May Be.
Exercised”, so thera is the nbtlce of intent and the notice to exercise,

Number five says, “The first option will be exercisad by giving written notice,
as set forth In paragraph three, the same form of written nolics, which notics can
only be given at any time within one year prior to the date of the explratlon of the
option.” The option axpires June 3rd of 2081.

So, and remember now, this was drafted by their attorney and we're
agreeing with them, they have three alternatives In their rasponsé but their first
altemative, “This is unambliguous and may be exerclsed as writen.” That's what
we agree with.

And so Dr. Black now knows they intend to repurchase this, That's very
helpful to him and his successors, because ihey;ll know that they don't need to go
out and try to find a buyer and they are not going to be able to maintain this after
the -~ 70) more years, after that expires.

But, they will not be able to exercise their option until a time, within one year
prior to the date of expiration. '

Now, | believe it can be dealt with on the face of the pleadings. | don't

believe it needs o be converted to a Rule 58 Motion, Your Honor, but there is a



paragraph nine that Indlcates that whenever ihey mutually agree, they can go
together and agree to sel! it to a third party. That language would be extraneous if
they could simply send a notice to Dr. Black to get out, they were taking over. They
wouidn't have had to have had a provision that agreed that they and Dr. Biack
could coﬂéborate in the decision to sell it, _

So when we read that, we realized that A, as long as you realize that there
has been notice of exercise — I'm somy, the notice of intent to exefcises. the notice
of Intent, and a notice actually to eicercise. and that those are not inherently
inconsistent, because it makes some sense. Let him know they're going to
ei(ercisa it, but then have a period of time within a — within when they could.

And if you think about that for a minute, Your Honor, the larger agreement
that included a deed and an agreement betwaen the parties, had Dr. Black taking
on a tremendous debt and responsibility to actualiy buiid a very large structure up
there, with an expectation he would spend his career thera, which he has. He's
onlf a few years away from retirement at this stage, but he certainly doesn't want
to sell now.

He's got something incredibiy valuable. He’s got either the ﬂrsf or second
most profitable ASC, right? Ambulatory Surgical Center in West Virginia, there are
only 11 of them, and he has one. And what underlies this whole thing is it's really
quite a plum énd in tﬁis time of depressed real estate values, it's a great time for
the hospital to snag it away from the doctor. But his betlef was, and | think the
agreement clearly shows that he would get a deed and then they would have a 99-

year repurchase option and from time to time there's a slip and we tended to call it
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a 99-year lease, but it's not. There Is deed from the hospital to Dr. Black. He
owns that property subjact to this repurchase option, which, according tb
paragraph five, may be given -

BY THE COURT: You interpret that language in that deed ~ in.that
instrument and | don't have it in front of me, but do you interpret that meaning that
they entered Into this agreement that they had a 89-year repurchase agreament,
s0 he goes in and he builds it and a year after he gets it built and gets his business
going up thers, that they can nofify him that they are going to repurchase it and
then the next year, notify him they want to buy it now? _

MR. HUNTER: Well, their theory is just that, | don't want to speak for them,

but that's what the pleadings say is that Dr. Biack could have built this, young,

‘eager, bright-ayed young surgeon planning to spend his life in Buckhannon and

the week after he built it, they could buy it back from him.

BY THE COURT: You could answer that with a “yes” or a "no°, Mr. Hunter.

MR. HUNTER: That's ayes. -

BY THE COURT: Okay.

MR. HUNTER: That's the theory we're objecting.to. Wae're saying that it's
quﬂa clear, and there is no ambiguity to the phrase "at any fime within one year
prior to the dats of expiration”, when you've got the date of expiration right there.
i{'s anytime within one year prior to June 3, 2081, which would be either the énd or
3rd or 4th of 2080. The notice of execution, according to this, has to ba within that

one year.
BY THE COURT: Within ona year of what?
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MR. HUNTER: June 3, 2081. May { show it to the Court?

BY THE COURT: Yes, please, letma seeit.

MR. HUNTER: It's right there. The first one is the one that says they can
send a notice they intend to do it at any time, but number five says they may only
actually send a notice of execution during that one year, within one year of that

date.
MR. SELLARDS: Your Hanor, if | may, while you're focusing on that

- language, | didn't want to —

- BY THE COURT: Wel, as I'm reading 1, if I'm reading what he asked me to-

read, and it's just two paragraphs and I'm sure there is probably more, but it says,
“Written notica by at least one year prior to June the 3rd, 2081.", and that's the
notice and then they have to give the notice that they're going to exercise i, by
glving notice =

MR. HUNTER: At any time within that one year.

BY THE COURT: And that notice can only be given at any time within one
year prior to the date of expiration of the option. So what are we talking about
here? V B

MR. SELLARDS: Well, Your Honor, | mean, it doesn't make sense, if you
read the - if you read paragraph five from the beginning, it says, “The first option
will be exercised by giving written notice as set forth in paragraph three, herein
which notice can only be given at any time within one year.” The problem is, is that
paragraph three talks about notice and axercising it oulside of the last year,
paragraph five says the only time you can exercise it is by providing the notice and

exercising it within one year. They are mutually exclusive.



Let me also raise another point. The standard for a Motion to Dismiss is
pretty narrow. What we're talking about is this Court has to determine that there is
absolutely not one single fact that merits discovery.

Mr. Black's own counsel provided this Court at least one fact that merits
discovery. He represented to this court information that is not supported by the
record. He tells this Court that Mr. Reed was the hospital's attorney that

drafted this document, without any substancs, affidavit, testimony or anything like

that. We don't know what the drafter says, we don’t know what the intention of the

parties are. -

Certainly, you knﬁw, this ~ but this all merits discovery, Your Honor, It
certainly defeats a Motion to Dismiss. Mr. Hunter Is right, this prdbably is more
ripe for a Maotion for Summary Jhdgment, but as this Coust is aware that is after
discovery.

You know, something else, Your Honor, that | think is significant, that's not
raised in Mr. Hunter's Motion to Dismiss, but there is abso!utely ne reguirament in
any of these documents that forces the parties to have a writtan modification, so
two and a haif years ago when Dr. Black approched the hospital about the
repurchase of the ASC, we were in a position where we started down the road of
considering it, we looked at the financlals.

It manifests itself into a letter that Dr. Black wrote February 1%, 2011, to us,
that challenges us to exercise our first option to purchasa. It cites the Deed Book

and the page number, where it's recorded. it goes'so far, as part-of that etter, and
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tells us that if we don't exercisal our first option to purchase, theﬁ he will deem the
property able to be sold to another buyer.

So what happens is, Your Honor, we go out and we get, because there ars
limited ASCs in this area, the ambulatory surgical centers, we go out and we hira a
nationally recagnized appraisal group to come in and appraisa Dr. Black’s facility.

We also come in and we bring in a group that specializes In the valuation
and evaluation of physician préctices. To the tune of somewhere in the
neighborhood of $30- to $40-thousand dollars out-of-pocket expense to be able to
sit down and talk candidly with Dr. Black about the true value of this facility and of |
the value of his practice.

At no time, over the last two and a half years, until Mr. Hunter's involvement,
was thera ever the notion that you couldn't exercise this at this point.

Muitiple discussions, up to and including the fact that Dr. Black has
previously had other counsel that didn't raise this issue, that had substantive
discussions with the hospital about resolution and about values and about
everything eise that transpired prior to our involvement today and at no time was
there ever the suggestion that this hyper-technicai read of this agreement was
going to opt to preciude the hospital from exercising its option,

The reality is that what I'm telling you is all discoverable. The
conversations, the substance of the conversations, tha reailties, the intentions of
the parties, all merits discovery.

Maybe this Court grants summary-judgment later. That's certainly what Dr.
Black would hope. But the reality of this thing is that for two and a half years and
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for years and years prior to that, there are understandings of the parties invoived.
The actual Paliottine Slster that executed these agreements with Dr. Black still
lives. She's' still very actively involved with the Pallottine mission, She's actually
on the Board of Directors and will be able to shed light oﬁ the hospital’s position as
it entered into these agreements.

Dr. Black is here. This is the best time to vent these issues and to fook at
this stuff.

| mean, candidly, Your Honor, o throw this case out would be improper.
We think that there - all we have to do is show you one fact, one fact at all that can
be turned in any way and the dismissal is overtumed - is denied. -

| have shown you that we were e_ithe; invited by Dr. Black’s February, 2011,
letter to exercise it, that either operates to create an alteration to the contract, or it
certalnly could warrant analysis under. a waiver argument, ail of which is goingto
require us to discuss this issue with Dr. Black and the people that were invoived in
the previous discussions and with Dr. Black at the time. _

| mean, candidly, Your Honor, the substance and the effect of the letter
warrants discovery. The Issues relaled to paragraph three and paragraph five that
Mr. Hunter shewed this Court, when combined with the fact that, it's our
understanding that this was not a contract of adhesion, but an arms length
negotiated contract, whether or not Mr. Reed -

BY THE COURT: Lel me ask you a question.

" MR. SELLARDS: Yes, sir.

00
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BY THE COURT: 1 haven't read all fhis hera, was going to read it before we
came to court, but we got real busy this moming and | didn't get it done.

MR. SELLARDS: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: Let's assume that you all give him notice, you all want to
buy and he's ready to sell, what's the price? How do we come - arrive at the price
and what If you can't agrea on the price? |

MR. SELLARDS: That's actually, Your Honor, what led us to fils the dec
action ln the beginning. The discussions stalled after —

BY THE COURT: Giving somebody an option doesn't mean that you all can
set the price. '

MR. SELLARDS: It absolutély does. In fact, there is language inside of the
agresment, in thé option, that outline a three panel arbitration group be brought in
to value and defermine the price. And we are prepared and have formally notifled
Biack and his prior counsel that we would go through the arbitration process.

With that being said, Your Honor, | mean, we've actually.alraady mediated
the case since the time that this thing has been filed,

So thers are —

BY THE COURT: Who was your medlator?

MR. SELLARDS: Her name was Deborah Schedare.

BY THE COURT: Do any good?

MR. SELLARDS: | think we made headway. | mean, we'va not resolved,

we're still here on this motion.
BY THE COURT: |understand she is a good mediator,

10
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MR. SELLARDS: | think she did an excellent job. She was selected by Mr.
Hunter and we've never used her in the past, but will use her in the future.

But, | mean, Your Honor, candidly -

BY THE COURT: ' So what's the real issue between you all herg now?

MR. SELLARDS: Weil, originally —

BY THE COURT: As I understood what you have said, you all want to buy it

and he wants to sell it. 7

DEFENDANT: No, | don't want to sell t.

MR, HUNTER: That's not - you can't talk. .

BY THE COURT: Okay, that's what I'm trying to get straightened out here.

MR. HUNTER: He does notwant to sell at this time and my problem, and |
think the Court asked me a question, but my problem is my case today is hased
upon this - the pleadings that have Eean filed. We got lots of arguments about the
uriderlying facts, but if they have not pled a case upon which relief can be granted,
they've got to lose.

They have pled it and ! noticed that they did not quote the operant
paragraph to this Court in their pleadings. They didn’t tell the Court that the

- provision that said that the actual execution cannot take placa until within one year

of 2081. Now, mayba it was inadvertent, but | think it was certainly important and
there is a fiduciary responsibility by counsel to plead that. That's in there,
And although - he's talking about all this other stuff, if you don't belleve

them that it's unambiguous and they win, then it's ambiguous and they get a trial.

But the point is, it's unambiguous.

12
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it can be read quite clearly that they gat to teil Dr. Black any time that it's
their intention to repurchase, but they can only give him the notics of the exercise
within one year. That’s what | wanted to focus on. The fact that Dr. Black did
not approach — ‘ 7

BY THE COURT: In other words, their option is not valid untll a year before
the 2081 date.

MR. HUNTER: It's all - we believe it's all completely valid, but it's
determined by deadlines that are built into the agreement and if they are saying
that this wasn't -

BY THE COURT: Well, let me word that differently, then.

MR. HUNTER: Pardon?

BY THE COURT: lt's your contention that they are not — lheyAara prohibited
from exercising thair option until 2080. |

MR. HUNTER: Just read number five, that's exactly what it says. That's
exactly what it says. They can send out a notice their are going to, at any time.
But who in his right mind is going to build a beautiful office suite, investing his own
money, knowing that the other side could send him a notice the next week that
they are going to buy'it back. | 7

MR. SELLARDS: But Your Honor, that is egacﬂy why a Motion to Dismiss
fails, because who in his right mind, but for knowing the intention of the parties in

1982. Let's depose him, let's figure that out, let's depose my people, let's — it's got

to get into discovery.
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MR. HUNTER: Unless that has plain meaning within the document, and if it
does, they are hound by their contract, and if there is an assertion that this didn't
come out of Mr, Reed's office, | am sure that I've seen Mr. Reed's secretary's
signatures on this, and I'm sure the deed that was part of this was prepared by Mr.
Reed and when we asked to contact Mr. Reed about the work he did on thig, he
said he was preciuded from talking to us, because he had been hospital's counsel
at that time,

Now, | understand that's a little bit outside of the pleadings, but that would
lonly ba relevant if the Court determines this is ambiguous, and then we wouid be
lacking at who would the ambiguity be resolved against.

MR. SELLARDS: But that's all part of discovery.

MR. HUNTER: But we're not hare, we're saying that paragraph five is
unambiguous, and not only is it unambiguous, but they put the word “only” in there.
it could have just said "within one year”. It doasn't, it says, "Only within one year.”

MR. SELLARDS: Your Honor = :

MR. HUNTER: That's even better than unambiguous.

BY THE COURT: All right, | understand what you ara saying. Now, go
ahead, sir.

MR. SELLARDS: Your Honor, counsel is pointing to their misplaced
reliance on the Twambley case, where our West Virginia Supreme- Count, in Roth
v. Felica Care Incorporated, affirmatively declined to follow Twambley, stating that
West Virginia Is, in fact, a notice pleading state and that we're not going to get

O



married to the specific claims in every single complaint and as long as there is
something that we're allowed to go on with discovery.

So | respond to that, the —

BY THE COURT: Well, let me just ask you a question in paragraph ffve.
“Time during which option may be exercised, This ..." -

MR. SELLARDS: The first option. _

BY THE COURT: 7“... will be exerciged by giving written notice as set forth
in paragraph three herein, which notice can only be given at any time within one
year prior to the date of the expiration of this option.”

MR. SELLARDS: Your Honor -

BY THE GOURT: In other words, the option expires June the 3™, 2081 —

MR. SELLARDS: But that's not how it reads, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Wel, let me finish. |

MR. SELLARDS: Yes, sir.v _

BY THE COURT: Weli, | just read it, that's what it says.

MR. SELLARDS: Well, but there’s no punctuation in - where it says, -
“...paragraph three heminlwhich can only be given at any tima within one year.”
Had there been punctuation, had there been some other language, then it might

clear up what we believe is ambiguous about this. |

BY THE COURTt- Now wait, are we arguing over a comma?

MR. SELLARDS: We ara arguing about throwing out a case that we haven't

even had a chance to depose the drafter of yet.
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BY THE COURT: It says, “...or within 90 days after a notice of default Is
tendered in the manner and terms required by provision...” — well, we're not talking
about that, as | understand it.

MR. SELLAI&DS: But what if Mr. Reed comes back and says, “Your Honor,
that’s not what we intended. That's not what happened. That's not whatever,” We
don't know that today. But that [s a fact that should overcome a Motion to Dismiss.
Maybe not summary judgment, I'm not talking about that this is a potential slam-
dunk case, but we're taiking about this Court deciding that there is absolutely not
one single shred of factual evidence fhat could proceed to discove'ry.

MR. HUNTER: May | respond to that question counsel asked?

BY THE COURT: Well, now, I'f = I'm going to ésk him something.

MR. HUNTER: Okay.

BY THE COURT: | understand that there could be some possible
explanations, though when people enter into a contract, both sides, | assume, were
represented by attorneys when this was entered info.

MR. HUNTER: Notmy client

BY THE COURT: Well, he represented himself and he had a poor lawyer, if
that's the case. Cause nobody that represents themselves has a good IaWyer, just
all I'm saying there. But | could understand that there is possibly other intent, but
when you read this thing, it really concerns me, that it said they can only exercise
their option within a year of June the 3™, 2081.

MR. SELLARDS: Then what ! would do, Your Honor, is { would proffer to

this Courta =
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BY THE COURT: lsn't that what it says?

MR. SELLARDS: You - i mean, you are reading the words right, Your
Honor, but #'s - | truly do believe that this paragraph, paragraph five has an error
init. 1don’t think that they meant -

BY THE COURT: Okay, well, when do you think that - where do you
propose to éhow that it can be exercised? |

MR. SELLARDS: | dbn't think that’é even ~ | think that that's actually moot
as of the fact that Dr. Black has invited us to exercise it.

BY THE COURT: Oh, forgat that. Let's just talk about whait this contract
says, Forget all about that, what’s this contract say?

MR. SELLARDS: | think the contract says that we ‘hava to exercise it
pursuant to paragraph tﬁrea, which paragraph three can only be given at any time
within one year, but that is directly contrary to what paragraph three itself says.
That's how it reads, Your Honor, “...set forth in paragraph three herein, which
notice can only be given at any tirhe within one year.” But, as you know, above
that, it says, paragraph three says “at least one year prior”.

| mean, the reality is we are struggling over this bacause there is an
ambiguity in it. It may be small, it may be large, but certainly, if there was an
attomey involved, a local attorney, even, it still merits disodvery. and that's all we
are asking for is a chance - not to shut the Courthouse doors on us and let us go
talk to these people.

BY THE COURT: Well, | don't = I'm trying to see where they are ambiguous

and ihey contradict each other, because it says in paragraph three, “Notice of
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Exercise. The option shall be exercised by written notice signed by St. Joseph's
and sent by registered mail at least one year prior to the expiration date.” In other
words, they've got to do it before - while there is still more than a year to go.

MR. SELLARDS: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: Okay, that's when they have to do it. Then St. Jae could
exercise the option, “First option will be exercised by givihg written nolice as set
forth in paragraph three herein, which notice can only be given at any time within
one year prior to the date of the expiration of the option.” Now, et me read that
again, .

MR. SELLARDS: Your Honor, I'll proffer | draft contracts for health care
facilities all up and down the éast coast and this is a formation iésue. The
language that follows paragraph three herein relates to paragraph thres, which is
directly opposed to what paragraph three's language says. '

There needs - and we may or may not ba'ta[king aboht an “and” sign or a
“of” sign or punctuétion or something like that, but we are lalking about a muitl-
miliion dollar deal here and this document was drafted by nobody - by people that
are not in front of this Court today, in 1982. It certainly warants a little bit of
peeling the onion to check this thing out,

MR. HUNTER: May | respand to that, Your Hohor?_

BY THE COURT: Well, there are a lot of oil and gas leas'ea' running around
in this county that people might feel that way about, that we ought to chack them
out because of something like that, and if we started doing that, wé’ve got

problems, big problems.

it
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MR. HUNTER: Your Honor, may | address the specific points that we
differ?

BY THE COURT: I'm studying paragraph five. Ali right, go ahead.,

MR. SELLARDS: Yaur Honor, I'm prepared to answer any other questions.
Specifically, | don't think that it's equitable to St. Joseph's Hospital to be abie to
completely ignore the effect or any legal effect of the February 1*, 2011, letter, If
Your Honor would iike i can present you with a clean copy, but it clearly, it clearly
invités St. Joseph's Hospital to exerclse its first option to purchase and it clearly
says at the end of the letter that failure to exercise this option to purchase shail
constitute grounds for free and unimpaded sale to others. |

Soin 2011, we were allowed to execute it, and we negotiated it, and we
went out and got values for it and we got back to the table and he didn't get happy
and he got a lawyer and his lawyer told us that this wasn't an option to purchase,
but a first right of refusal and based on reliance on our dealings with B!ack's
previous counsel, we filed the dec action in an effort to have this Court determine
that the language itself constituted a first option to purchase as opposed to a right
of refusal. |

And that's what happens. We file the dec action, Dr. Black brings in new
caunsel, now we're faced with a technical argument, for two years had never ever
been raised, not one time, not ane letter, not one email, not one phone call did we
— was it ever suggested to us that we were early. And we negotiated, and we

negotiated in good faith and we continued to negotiats, up into negotiating even

last week on the purchase of this thing.




BY THE COURT: Well, that cerfainly very well may be what you all did, but
!‘m still concerned abaout what this contract says. | still have some concerns there.
Mr. Hunter?

MR. HUNTER: I'd like to point out two things, Your Honor. Paragraph five
simply sald - } think a little better draftsmanship would have added the word
‘intent” on number three. | think everything would be abundantly clear, even
though 1 think, as they asserted in their first defense to my motion, that this is
unambiguous. 1t probably should have sald "notice of intent to exercise”, okay?
Because if you read it, then they can file their notice of intent to exercise any time
they want to before one year heiore the expiration and that's fine. |

. Now, this next one, number five, “This first option will be exercised by giving
written notice as set forth in paragraph three.”, that doesn’t mean before the ane
year, the last one year starts, that means by registered mall. It simply means the
notice of exercise will be filed in the same form, by registered mail, as the notice of
intent to exercise. '

But the notice of exercise in this clearly can only be within one year prior to
that date.

Now, here is what is important. Counsel is proffering a great amount of
extraneous fact, much of which ws disagree with and the reason that I've tried not
to be lured into arguing those facts is that under our theory, Donald Duck could
prepare this, Their lawyer in Charleston co_uld prepare it, Mr. Sellard could

prepare It, my client could have prepared it. If it's an unambiguous provision, all of

J
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this parole evidence'can't come in unleé.s they are going to allege something Iika
fraud. .

Now, and Your Honor, the way | understand the rules, they could have
comse forward with massive affidavits and documents and assertions to lry'to turn
this into a Rule 56 motion. They didn' really dq that, they have basically taken the
position that it's not ambiguous, then they say it is ambiguous, then they say my
clients waived it. In fact, It was approached but -

BY THE‘COURT: You have reprasentad to me, Mr. Hunter, that both sides
agree that this is not ambiguous and ~ |

MR. HUNTER: Well, their answer says that, yes. Their position is it is not
ambiguous and it should be enforced on the terms of its face and that's what we
agreed to. “ '

BY THE COURT: 1 think paragraph five is arhbiguous. I'm-

MR. HUNTER: Well, you're the Judge, sa I'min trouble,

MR. SELLARDS: Youwr Honor. put us on a quick docket -

MR. HUNTER: Paragraph five says it can only be exercised at any time
within one year.

BY THE COURT: Now, no, no, just read it here, this first option, talking
about option, “...will be exarcised by giving written notice as set forth in
paragraph three herein, which notice...”, are they talking about the one in
paragraph three? “...can only be given at any time within one year prior to the

date of expiration." Well, paragraph three says it has io be given before that one

year of expiration.
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MR, ASHWORTH: That's right, absolutely.

MR. SELLARDS: | agree, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: “...of this option, or within 90 days afier a notice of
default...”, and so on and so forth, | think it's ambiguous.

MR. HUNTER: Your Honor -

BY THE COURT: Your motion Is -

MR. HUNTER: -what | was trying to say and | understand the Court may

be winding up here, at the end, it says that the notice will be sent as the one in
paragraph three. All that means is by registered mail.

MR. SELLARDS: But~- _

MR. HUNTER: but it Is; completely unambiguous that it can only be
exercised within that one year, can only be exercised. Notlce can be sent bafbre. it
can only be axerpised within that one year.

BY THE COURT: Well, as | read paragraph thres and five, five is saying
that three can be ~ paragraph three says it has to ba exercised at least a year prior
to the expiration date. Paragraph five turns around and says they can do it within
that one year.

S0 1 think it's ambiguous.' And | 80 find and deny your Motion to Dismiss.

MR. SELLARDS: Your Honor, would you like us to prepare tha Order?

BY THE COURT: Yes, please.

MR. SELLARDS: How —what time line, M. Hunter, to respond to the
complaint? -

MR. ASHWORTH: Do you want more than ten days, in other words, sir?

22
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MR. SELLARDS: Your Honor, do you want to —

BY THE COURT: Well, the rules séy ten days. Ten days. How much you
want to give him?

MR. SELLARDS: We'll give him, | meah, to be hospitable, as much tims as
he believes he needs to -

MR. HUNTER: To do what?

MR. SELLARDS: File your answer. Ten days, 20 days?

MR. HUNTER: 20 days, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: All right, put that in the Order.

MR, SELLARDS: Yes, sir.

' BY THE COURT: This is yours, Mr. Hunter.

WHEREUPON, the hearing was adjoumed at 2:02 p.m.
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June 21, 2013
11:39 a.m.

BY THE COURT: Let's see, counsel, who- do we have here for the Plaintiff? |

MR. ASHWORTH: Your Honor, it's Ryan Ashworth and Rob Sellards on
behalf of St. Joseph's Haspital.

BY THE COURT: Ryan Ashworth and Robert Sellards?

MR. SELLARDS: Sellards.

MR. ASHWORTH: Yes, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: And we have Mr. Burton Hunter on behaif of Dr. Black.

- Okay. And | believe we are here on — is it the Motion for Summary Judgment?

- MR. ASHWORTH: Yes, Your Honor, it is.

BY THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. ASHWORTH: Your Honor, on June 3™, 1983, Dr. Black and St.
Joseph's Hospital entered into arms lengths negotiations that resuited in a
Memorandum Agreement and a document called First Option to Purchase certain
real estaté that was located on the main campus of the hospital. Everything went
fine for several years and then recently, a few years ago, we received
correspondence from Dr. Black, that told St. Joseph’s Hospital that they must
exercise their right of first refusal or lose that right. There were communications
back and forth between Dr. Black and St. Joseph's Hospital —

BY THE COURT: Well, now, was that an offer, was that a demand that they

exercise their right of first refusal or was that an offer to purchase?



MR. ASHWORTH: It was a demand to exercise the right, Your Honor, let
me quote some of the Iaﬁguage from — 7

BY THE COURT: AH right. Or offer to sell, | should say.

MR. ASHWORTH: You could call it that but the language from the
communications dated June — excuse me, dated February 1%, 2011, says, “Failure
to exercise the option to purchase shall constitute the grounds for free and
unimpeded sale to other parties.” Subsequent communications also said the only
cbligation that was due is, "The prior notification of a possible intent to sell the
properties and the concurrent equal offer and right of first refusal of St. Joseph's
Hospital.”

So the first communication they use the word "option to purchase”, but they
were referring to the first option to purt:hase, which is the title of the document. In
the totality of the communications, it was clear Dr. Black used on several
occasions the term “right of first refusal”, and he wanted us to either purchase the
property under the agreement or allow him the unimpeded sale to third parties that
may be interested in it.

BY THE COURT: So | go back to my question, | still don’t understand,
you know, a right of first refusal, | have an offer of a hundred dollars. You have a
right of a first refusal, so you can exercise your right to purchase it for a hundred
dollars —

MR. ASHWORTH: Yes, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: A right of first refusal. An offer to purchase, I'm offering it



to you for $200.00. | don't have any other offers, but I'm offering. it to you. Now,
which was it in your understanding?

MR. ASHWORTH: Well, from the language of the communication, it was a
right — it was them offering us the right, what they believed to be the right of first
refusal. _ |

BY THE COURT: Okay, but there hadn't been any other offers. Or had
there been? |

MR. ASHWORTH: There potentially was another offer from a third party.
Excuse me, he had offered — a third party had approached Dr. Black for the
burchase of the real estate and potentially the practice and based upon that third
party’s —or alleged third party’s apparent interest in the pro’pérty, Dr. Black
believed or at feast the communications from Dr. Black would have led the hospital
to believe that he thought he had to offer the ﬁroperty to us first under the first
option to purchase before he could engage in arms length communications with
this third party and sell it to them. So in other words, he believed that he had an
obligation to offer us the right of first refusal and that's what we believe he did was
offer us the right of first refusali.

BY THE COURT: Okay, go ahead.

MR. ASHWORTH: Okay. Well, when the hospital saw this
communications, whén they understodd that fact, they locked back at the
documents, we looked at the documents and we realized that it's not a right of first

refusal, it's an option contract and under the law of the State of West Virginia and



all the laws of all the otherjuﬁSprudénces in the country, an option cont’ract and a
right of first refusal are obviously two completely different things.

So because the hospital was concerned that if this document turned out to
be a right of first refusal, there could be a potential loss of some type of propérty
interest, we brought before the Court a complaint for declaratory judgment and we
simply asked the Court, “Is the document an option contract or a right of ﬂrs_t
refusal?”, nothirig more. We didn’t ask when it could be exercised, we didn’t ask
for the interpretation of it, we just asked the Court to tell us whether it was or
wasn't or whether the Court couldn’t decide, at which time we would have to go to
discovery.

And we sat before this Court months ago and we went over the option
contract in detail and this Court ruled unequivocally that it is an option contract.

At that point in time, we had been in litigation for several months if not close
to nine months or so. We had gbtten, basically, the ruliﬁg that we wanted. We
understood now, the hospital understood now that it had an optio'n contract. Itwas
a contract that couldn’t be revoked is probably not the right word, but it couldn’t be
alleviated by just a simple offer, it was a Cdntract that withstood a right of first
refusal and it existed until the tirhe limit aliowed for it, so that the hospital could
exercise it if it wanted to, in the future. |

it's never exercised, by the way. The land Was there for 20 years and he's
operated his practice out of it and has a building on it.

But, I digress. |digress. We got the ruling from this Court that it —



BY THE COURT: Don't digress too much cause we've got an awful lot to
do right this morning.

MR. ASHWORTH: We had a ruling from the Court that said that this was an
option contract and since we had been in discovery for a long time and we
understood now what we were trying to find out when we filed the complaint for
dectaratory judgment, which was simply asking, | refer to it several times, “is this
an option contract or is this a right of first refusal?”, the Court's —

BY THE COURT: The Court ruled that it's an option of first refusal, right?

MR. ASHWORTH: And the Court ruled that it was a — the Court ruled that it .
was an option contract.

BY THE COURT: Option contract, ckay.

MR. ASHWORTH: We moved for a summary judgment saying there was
no more material facts, the one question that we had asked the Court to declare
under the statute, aliowi-ng us to bring a dec[aratory judgment action so that We
understand our rights under a contract, the one question that we asked had been
answered by the Court, and we moved, pursuant to Rule 56 of the applicable
Rules of Civil Procedure, to grant a motion for summary judgment, because,
frahkly, there wasn'’t anything left to do. We shouldn't have — we didn’t need to go
to a trial, we didn’t need discovery, the Court ruled.

So, we filed that motion and in response, we have received three reéponses
now that raise everything from how the notice provisions work if we would, in

fact, exercise the option, to how a paid expert would interpret this contract in



variegation of the Court’s earlier ruling and they have asserted the rule against
perpetuities.

But we have our answer and all of that stuff is immaterial. We wanted to
know if it was an option contract or a right of first refusal, the Court has ruled on
that, and now we have —

BY THE COURT: Did Judge Keadie put that in alwritten Order?

MR. ASHWORTH: Yes, Your Honor, would you like to see it?

BY THE COURT: Well, it's probably in the file, | would expect, | would
hope. Can you tell me about when it was?

MR. ASHWORTH: It was - it's dated October the 9", 2012.

BY THE COURT: Allright, well, let's see, then. Would you like to
approach, counsel? | |

MR. ASHWORTH: | certainly would, Your Honor. May | approach?

BY THE COURT: Please come up, :;/es.

MR. ASHWORTH: it's a three-page document and I'll try to refer to it from
memory if | don’t have another copy of it, Your Honor, but as you see in the
conclusions —

BY THE COURT: Well, | just found it, thanks, you can come and get it
now. '

MR. ASHWORTH: Thank you, hay | approach?

BY THE COURT: This is — you may, sir, Judge Keadle said Hunter filed a
complaint for declaratory judgment in April of 2012. The Plaintiff requested a legal

declaration of rights. The option was contract. The Defendant responded by filing



a motion to dismiss. Okay, Judge Keadle said, “Finding of fact, conclusions - Dr.
Black entered into an option contract, this option contract has been recorded,
language ih paragraph thfee of the option contract allows St. Jos. to exercise the
“option at any time prior to June 3 of 2080, therefore, paragraph five of the option
contract is ambiguous, as a matter of. law and fact. For the reasons stated herein
as well as Plaintiffs ... the Court hereby holds that as stated by ... it denies the
Defendant’s motion to dismiss."

MR. ASHWORTH: The Defendant moved to dismiss our complaint for
declaratory judgment and that's when we became — came before this Court, Your
Honor, in a lengthy hearing, that went over the option contract and related
documents and we discussed them in detail.

BY THE COURT: Right, that's the motion — Order denying the motion to
dismiss,

MR. ASHWORTH: Yes, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ASHWORTH: Had answered the question. That's why we moved for a
summary judgment. The Court had three options to handle the motion fo dismiss.
The Court could have ruled that it was an option contract and we would have
been done. The Court rule that it was a right of first refusal and we would have
heen necessarily been done, or the Court could have said, “We need to do
discovery to determine if it's an option contract or a right of first refusal.” Well, the

Court ruled that it was an option contract. That's the question, the only question



that we moved for and asked for clarification on in the compiaint for declaratory
judgment.

The notice provision issues that you see in the Order was a result of issues
that were raised on the motion to dismiss.

BY THE COURT: Well, Judge Keadle apparently didn't find it to be the end
of the case, because he didn’t dismiss the case. In fact, it says, “The Court hereby
hoids, as stated above, it denies the Defendant’s motion to dismiss, Defendant
shall have 20 days from the date of this ruling to submit his answer to the Plaintiff's
complaint.”

MR. ASHWORTH: Yes, Your Honor, and he —

BY THE COURT: So, | mean, he anticipates it going on.

MR. ASHWORTH: Right and — but then the Defendant answered.

BY THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ASHWORTH: And the Defendant said unequivocally in his answer that
they do not anymore dispute that it's an option contract.

~ BY THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ASHWORTH: They said — they actually denied in their answer taking
that position and they said, in their answer, they said, the Defendant specifically
said, “The determination of whether this document is an option contract is for a
determination by the Court and a matter of law.” And when the Defendant said
that, we agreed. [t was something that needed to be determined as a matter of
law, but has been, in paragraph one of the Order, this is an option contract, nofa

right of first refusal.
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BY THE COURT; Okay, so ydu are saying that since they agreed that it
was an option contract -

MR. ASHWORTH: That's all we ever asked.

BY THE COURT: And the Court said before it was an option contract, that
it's a done deai?

MR. ASHWORTH: Yes, Your Honor, and —

BY THE COQURT: 1 understand your position. | Let me hear from Mr. Hunter
and see if he agrees with you.

MR, HUNTER: Your Honor, { was in a day or two of mediations where the
real issue was discussed in much more candor than we're hearing today.

BY THE COURT: Butwe don't talk ébout mediations in Coun, do we?

MR. HUNTER: No, ] won't - "

BY THE COURT: And we’re not going to go around it and talk about them
in Court.

MR, HUNTER: No, what | want to tell the Court is that the real issue in this
case is whether St. Joseph's can exercise that option now or during the last year of _
a 99-year term and if St. Joseph's is saying — |

BY THE COURT: So you're saying — ‘

MR. HUNTER: - they're not seeking a ruling on that issue and they want to
take their marbles and go home, 1 think we would take them up on that. Because |
don’t think they would ever dare file suit again now that they know that —

BY THE COURT: So you are saying that you agree with them that it's_ an

option contract?



MR. HUNTER: Always have,

BY THE COURT: Périod. Done deal. Case dismissed. Right? _ '

MR. HUNTER: Well, if that's what they're saying. Butit's our
understanding —

BY THE CQURT: That's what they'are saying and they are saying you
agree with them, |

MR. HUNTER: As far as it goes.

BY THE COURT: And that's all they want to know.

MR. HUNTER: And if they are not seeking a ruling on whether they can
exercise that option now, go on record saying that if they try, we'll resist it.

BY THE COURT: That's not part of the case. That's not part of the case,
Mr. Hunte}. | |

'MR. HUNTER: | understand that.

BY THE COQURT: Fm not deciding that one way or the other. Please
prepare an Qrder which says that the matter was dete.nnined by the Court to Abe an
option contract, |

MR. SELLARDS: Yes, sir.

MR. ASHWORTH: Which | believe we admitted.

BY THE COURT: I'm teliing him to prepare it.

MR. ASHWORTH: I'm sorry.

" BY THE COURT: All right? But Mr. Hunter agrees with you, that that is the
sole question decided by this Court, case disrhissed.

MR. SELLARDS: Thank you, Your Honor.
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BY THE COQURT: Thank you, sir.
MR. HUNTER: Thank you.
BY THE COURT: Thank you, counset.

WHEREUPON, the hearing was adjourned at 11:54 a.m.
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